Bonfield T-161
Boone Creek Road & Riverview Avenue,

Oxford

Circa 1924

After fire destroyed the 18th Century house (T-160), John Lee Carroll Downes,
vice-president of Durant Enterprises and president of the Liberty National Bank
in New York City, built the present structure.

Standing on part of the original foundations and basement, this Colonial
Revival dwelling is 1} stories tall and 7 bays wide. The main entrance is located
in the center bay; all three center bays are recessed. Three dormers project above
this recess. A balustrade encloses the large, flat roof, from which rise two
chimneys; dormers pierce the open slopes of the gable roofs that cover the two-bay
sections flanking the entrance recess.

East of the house is an interesting outbuilding with a steeply pitched gable
roof and wide overhang. Its original use has been obscured by its conversion in
the 1920s into an office with chauffeur quarters above.

Today Bonfield is remembered as the residence in the 1930s of Hervey Allen,
author of the best-seller, Anthony Adverse.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Standing on part of the original foundations of Bonfield
is a one and one-half story 'H' plan house constructed after the
fire in 1924 which deéestroyed the 18th century chamberlaine mansion.

The present building is seven bays wide with the central bays
being recessed between two gable ends. Above the entrance recess
are three dormers. A balustrade extends around a large flat roof
from which two brick chimneys rise. On the east side of the house
is a small extension extending the depth of the house. As the house
is raised upon a man-made knoll, like neighboring Plimhimmon, the
basement is at ground level on the east. Across the south facade
is an enclosed porch.

East of the house stands an interesting and unusual outbuilding
with steep pitched 'A' roof with wide overhang. Its original use
is not now remembered because it had been converted into an office
for Carroll Downes in the 20's with chaffeur's quarters above.
The initials of Downes are still attached to its chimney. Today
it has a leanto and is a complete house in itself.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

As it stands today Bonfield is a good example of the 1920's Colonial
Revival in simple form. It is also important because it was owned in the
1930's by Harvey Allen, author of "Anthon¥ Adverse".

More important than the present dwelling was the fact that the 18th
century mansion of the Chamberlains was situated over part of the same
foundations.

The early house was nearly square, three bays wide across its prin-
cipal (north) facade and two rooms deep. On the east the basement was
at ground level but elsewhere the man-made knoll rose about four feet.
Across the facade was an Ionic portico. Its central entrance has a pedi-

('1ented architrave. On the second story there appears to have been a

. small gallery. 1In the Jjerkin head roof were two 20th century dormers and
between the two large chimneys was a balustrade. Across the south facade,
which appears to have been four bays wide was a one story glass porch.

Inside, the floorplan was like Galloway near Easton. The entire
north half of the house was an open stair hall, but originally was a stair-
hall and smaller enclosed room. The south half of the house contained
living room and dining room. '

Each of the three first floor fireplaces had handsome mantels of the
Revolutionary period. Only the dining room had a wood frame around the
plaster overmantel. Each of the rooms had plain wood dado with recessed
panels only beneath the windows. Flanking each fireplace were two six
panel doors, to either closets, the other room, or dumb waiter. Of the
cornices, the living room was the more elaborate, with a course of dentils
to match those of the mantel. The others were bold and plainer.

In the basement were located the kitchen and servants dining room,
storage room and vault, the latter still remains beneath the '"mew" house.
From the photos in possession of Mrs. R.T. Addis, Haverford, PA,

the building appears unique for Talbot County, being a two and one-half
story frame building with Jerkin head roof; however, the interior is com-
parable to work in Galloway and Pleasant Valley, also in the County,
which are the best of Talbot's Revolutionary architecture.

John Lee Carroll Downes lived at Bonfield in the 1920's and built
the present dwelling after the great house burned. In 1918 he was elected
an officer of the Philadelphia National Bank, Philadelphia and later Joined
with William C. Durant, then president of General Motors Corporation, be-

{ oming vice-president of all the Duramt Enterprises and later president i
" of the Liberty National Bank, New York City. He was at one time an officer
and director of more than 60 large corporations.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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# 8 Continued

In 1926, Mr. Downes retired from active business to his
home ., "Bonfield Manor", an early Colonial mansion near Oxford,
Eastern Shore. Maryland during which time he engaged in research
and industrial consulting work in this country and abroad.
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